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This is an interview being done with Dr. Milton Eisenhower.
The interviewer is Dr. Maclyn Burg. The interview is taking
place on Octobar 15, 1971, 5:00 o'clock in the evening,
cutside sand in the Eisenhower family home.

PR, BURG: Now are we entering the house in the way you would

have antered it—-

CR. EISEMHOWER: Yes,

DR. BRG:~-as a young lad?

DR. EISENHOWER: Yes, ordinarily I came in thies weet door all

the time,.

DR, BURG: And right after school it'd be this door that you'd

come throuagh.

DR. EISENHOWER: Well, not only after school. Any time. We

used the front door only when company was coming.

DR, BUIBG: I =sese.

DR, BISEMHOWER: Originally this room wa have antered was tho
kitchen. The stove sat right thers. The pantry was out the
north door of this room. And normally, when we had no company,

we &te in the kitchen. But if mother was doing sowething extra
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spacial we ats in the sdjcining room--the dining roocwe, which
later became a wecond living room when this one wae changed from

a kitchen into s dining roocm.

BURG: I sas.

EISENHOWER: I was the ons——and let ws see if I can remember
when it was--I was the one who moved tha kitchen--4id s good
deal of the work on the gns and other lines to move the kitchen
to the much smaller room out here. I remembar when we moved
the kitchen I didn't——I couldn't--handle the water pipes, =0

I didn't move the sink. Sometime later someone came in and

movad the sink.

BORG: Thise room back here.

EIGERHCOWER: That room, yes.

BURG: Lat's step back in thera, sir—

EISENHOWER: Yes.

BURG: —-=if wa Ccan.
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EISEMHOWER: When this roem wes & pantry, the bathroom was in
the small room hexe to the sast. When we made this room lnto
a kitchen, the bathroom was moved to where it is now--next to
what was our parants' bedroom. Grandfather Eisenhowsr had

lived until hia dezath in the bedroom which was changed into a

bathroom.
BURG: I sae. HNow how old were you when you were doing the moving?

BIMEMHOMER: Wall, I must hava baan about 16 yeare old. Let's
go back a bit. I remamber when thay duog the tranches thak

brought the city water and tha city sewage lines to Lthis house,
so obviounsly I had to be old enough to remamber it now. I zan

atill remember th2 tranchas., When I was guite young, my father

4, Tty

-;' l':l
a |
|- 4

FMG: I mee. N

Oy

wired the house for aleatriclty.

RISENHROWER: Not an outside slectriclian; of courss, ha was come-

hing of an asnginear.

BURG: Right.
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EISENHOWER: I think I remember when the furnace was pat in.
It was a hot-air furnace. Pipes, large ones, carried the hot
alr only to rooms on the first floor. £o the bédrooms upstairs

ware mighty cold in the winter. Father pat an open metal f | “.;"l

] L ]
5

ragister in the ceiling of ones of the two living rooms, so n“?ﬁ*_'-_:_-g,}'
some warmth thereafter drifted upstairs. Often when I got up

in the morning I would stand on that register as I donned my
clothes,

How, as we stand here in the dining room, we ses ths porch
oatside this east door. The refrigerator and other equipment
were out there. Mothar gave a dinner in 1927--just before I
was married--for Secretary /William M.7 Jsrdine, Sscretary of
Agricualture. And I remember very wall that the refrigerator
waa out there becausa Mr. Jardine liked a cocktazil before dinner,
80 I went up town, and Charles Harger gave me a hottles of mixed
martinis. I put it in the refrigerator; when it was time for
tha cocktails, I went ocut to pour drinks for Mr. Jardine and
myself., And mother came out and said, "What dosa that taste
like?" I mast tell you she had one of har church members doing

tha cocking and serving the dinner thet night so--

BUORGE: Oh, I sea,.
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EISENACOWER : —sha could be hostasze without doing the work.

BRG: I aasa,

EISENHOWER: And I said, "Well, mother, I'll pour 2 little in
2 glass.® And she said, "Juest give me » tesspoonful."” fo I
enid, "Here's 2 teaspoon.” £he tasted the martini. And then
her oyes sparkled se she locked at ma. She =aid, "Don't tell

Eister Toliver."

BURG: But your mother didn't mind you having those martinis

in tha houssa.

EISENEOWER: ©Oh, not st 2ll, not at a2ll. No, that's very funny.
There wae kind of a gqrowing or prograassive liber=lization in
tha family 28 tima went on. When I was a youngetar, cnrds

weran't played in tho house.

BUORG: I sasa.

EISENHOWER: Well, after = while we boys played cards. ¥Wa nall
played cards if we wanted to. In that ocupboard there on the north
woll waa alwaye n hottle of whiskey. It wes maintained it was

sajd-=it had never been opened--for medicinal purposes.
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BURG: And it had never haen opened.

EISENHOWER: No, never bean opened, But, nonetheless, it was

there, and mother didn't object to its being thara.

BIRG: Now when you ate here, yon would have had, I prasume,

a wood burning stove?

EISENHOWER: The stove--thes wood burning stove for cocking was
right here. There was a stove for heating in one of the two

living rooms.

8iME: And so0 3ix of von, plus your mother and your dad—all

ate at a tabla here—— —
EISEMHOWER: Yes, that's right. H o
BURG:i~—4in thia room—

EISENHOWER: That's correact.

HURG:--most of the time.
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EISENAOWER: BExcapt ss I say, whan there was company. I wish I
could remember for sure, but it cbviously had to be whaen I was
fiftesan or sixtesan bacsuse once I went away to college I wesn't
doing this sort of thing. And, therafors, it must have been
around 1915 or 'lé that the kitchdn was moved and this room
became the dining room. Incidentally, I understand that Earl
/3. Barl Endacott, first curzt@r of the Eisenhower Museum/
Endacott has done a lot of research and has many of theaa facts.

Ha goaye that he knows a lot about it that I don't, 2nd I suspect

e

that's true .

BURG: He's put it together in the form of s book so that we
may have it, and there's some talk of perhaps publishing this
evantually because he's run down everything he possibly can.
He's spent moch time and ressarch on it.

If wa could take you back to the tims when you're—let's
say-—junior high school sge, you would hit here I suppose around
3:30, 4:00 o'clock in the afternocon. Would it be earlier then

that or later than that?
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EISENEOWER: Well, keep in mind that--yes--of course, we didn't
heve junior high schools then. We had eight elementary grades

and fow yesre of high school.

BURG: Right.

EISENHOWER: Now once I sntarad high school, I worked and sarned
shout 54.00 3 weak. I would work aftar school--first in a

grocery store, then in a drug stors.

R
o7

i
BURG: I =ea. (
=

EISENHOWER: I worked after school and on Saturdays. When I got
homa, I still had to do my chores. Whan all aix ware home-—-—
though keep in mind that Arthur waa born 14 years befora I was,
80 I don't really have maoch recollection of six of us being at
home--mother was very skillful at getting the work done by the
boys; in order to keap them from being bored to death she
rotated the chores. Wa had a large orchard; we had an enormous
vagatable garden; we had an extensive alfalfa field, chickens,
cow, and horse. And these choras outdoors were assigned to five
of the boys, and there ware aix of us at homes then. One had to

work in the house, and that /Chore/ was the one each of us hated,
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BURG: The ono in tha honse?

EISEMHOWER: ©Oh, sure. He had to help with the washing and

all the rest.
BORG: And s I anderstand it you drew chout a week's daty?

BISENHOWER: That's right, it wae cne woak--

o

£

BURG: On & task. I Al
LT,
p B

EISENHOWER ; -=Ona waeek. You asked sbout the hour of my coming
homa. It was only when I was in the alementary grades, including
the eighth grade, which then was at the north side echool, that

I would coms home at about 3:00 or 4:00 inm the afternocon.
B8TRGE: But after that yoo were 5 working--

EISEMHOWER: I worked, I worked—

BURG: -—man.

EISENHOWER: I'va forgotten the name of the grocery stors. Then
I worked in a2 drug store until I was seventean. I graduated from
high schocl at 17. All my buddles wora = yesr older than I--I

don't know why ghat was sc—-at least they were old anough to go
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in the army at eighteen and I wasn't., I was going to lie about

my age in order to go in with them.

BURG: Would thisa be 1917 or-—-

s

EISENEOWER: This would be 1917. But my .;ii“ﬁ].'i'nh teacher was
Lois Harger, the daughter of the famous Charles Moreau Harger,
co~owner and editor of the newspaper. 5o she talked to ma and
sent me to see Mr. Harger; he talked me out of lying about my
age. He sald, "There'll be plenty of time for you to go in

the army when you're eighteen.” and [he] gave me a job as =
réporter on the newspaper. That's how I got atarted in
journalism. When I did become eighteen, I went to Kansas State
into--all young people were encouraged to do this at that time--

what was called The Student Army Training Corps.
BORG: 1 see.

EISENHOWER: I got & little education and a whale of a lot of

military treining.

BURG: Right, right.
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EISENMHOWER: When the armistice was signed on December 11, 1918,
they were very guick in getkting us out of the Student Army
Training Corpa, because we were no good at that stage to che

military esteblishment; and they wanted to save money.

BEURG: Yas.

EISENHOWER: Well, that was in & way a wasted year for me, so I
camé home, went back on the newspaper, 2nd in fact edlited the

néewespsper for a time.

BURG: Still living here at home, Dr., Eisenhower? IT £
"-r-._: P

i B
EISENHOWER: Yea. Yes, I didn't get completely away from home
until after J finished college. At Kansas State I lived in a
fraternity house. But let me go back & kit. This ie an interesting
part of my life,~I must say. When I was in high achool I developed
& strong ambition either to go inte the federal government--and
that seeme rather strange hecause at that time the whole federal

governmeént wasn't 2s blg as many state governments are today--or

into education. The latter I think I ecan figure out better than
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I can the former. Most of my brothers were good students but
also good athletes. I was a good student from the very beginning,
but T was a terrible athlete. I was butterfingered; I was on the
third basebzll team and waterboy in football., I think I made

ap my mind to excell intellectually.
BURG: I see.

EISENBOWER: I mean at a fairly early age. Anyway, I do know
that in high schocl I developed the ambition to do one or the
other and my studies in college were so designed. In my last
vear in college I wes carrying half graduste work and half
andergraduate, and upon getting my degree I was at once appointed

to the faculty.
BURG: At Kansas State? gy

EISENHDOWER: At Kansas State, as a young instructor, with the
privilege of coing ahead with graduate work toward a master's
degree and perhaps a Ph.D. I had been in the new job just about
two weeks when I got a telegram from Charles Evans Hughes, the
Secretary of State, offering me a post in the consulate in

Bdinburgh, Scotland.
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BURG: May I msk vou this, eir: how did that come sbout?

EISENHOWER: A young man from the Republican National Committee
came through Maphattan--I think in the early pert of my senior
vear-—-and persuaded me to take the lead in orgenizing a Republican
Committee of college students, which I did. Four came to the
organiration meeting. One was elected secretary, another
treasurer, & third vice-president, &nd I became president.

Well, an older studenty; a Demoorat and student reporter for the

S5t. Louis Fost Dispatch, asaw us in the meeting. He planned to

wrike @ humorous story a2bout the fact that only four students

could be induced to join a Republican Club. Well, that evening

I telephoned friends in various fraternities and the next morning--
I was editor of the student newspaper--I was asble to carry a list
of one hundred members of the Republican Club. This same young

man from Washington asked me why I didn't apply for the foreign
service, I did so0 and took an exemination and then, frankly,

forgot akbout it. o

BURG: Right. R*:;r-'
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EISENHOWER: Well, here I was ‘fust appointed to the faculty,

And now ceme sn gffer to accept a post In the federal covernment.
So my two ambitions were right kbefore me, Dr. Willism Jsrdine
wes president of the university and a great friend of mine. I
knew him, his wife, son, and two daughters. So I went into see
him, and I told him of my dilemma. He locked me right in the eye,
and said, "Milton Eisenhower, vou're fired." He added, "There's
no plece for you st this institutlion for the next two years; if
you want to come beck thern, wa'll zee what we can do." He then

snid. "Now go awey and make up yvour own mind.”
(.,

BURG: Marvelous. &, T

EISENHOWER: 350 obviously I went out and sent a telegram to the
Gecretary of State saying, "I accept,” That wap the way I got
started on & long governmert career which has never ended,

Even, you see, when I left the full-time mervice of the govern-
mént after nineteen years which included two presiderntizl appoint-
ments—my lest two posts were presidentisl aprolntments-——and
baceme president of Kensas State, I never ueesed doing work

for the president,

BURG: Yes.
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EISENHOWER: &AL, matier of fact, I was hacdly ln ofiice in Ransas
Stace when--well, @8 s0on &s the war waa over--a couple yeais
later--I was asked to return Lo Washington to put the Department
of Agriculture back bogether. The president had civided Ltﬂ---
during the war into & emall Department of Agriculture and HHQE&;
iazge War Food Ade lnistration. And I said, "Well, I will come
but wot as an employee of the govermment. I'll come as president
of Kansas State; you may pay my ctravel expenses and thet's all.”
I added one other concéitien. 1 said to Secretary [Clinton
Presba] Anderaon, now a sanator from Hew Mexlco, that "I must
nave lanch wath you every day." BHe sald, "Well, I'll be glad

to have lunch, babt why?" I sald, "Because 1 have done encugh
arganizational work In the federal government to remlice that
you can develop a beautiful plan only to have somebody put it

on the shelf and nothlng happens.® I sald, "I'm golng to have
lunch wich you every day; and you're golng to know what I'm
doingy you're golng o approve each sctep 2ach day: otherwige, I
won't do Lt." He sald,"I agree.”' So that vas my ze-antry Llnto
the federal service. But actually, you see, even though I'm in
my ktwenty-fLlfth year now as university president I've never been

free of governmental work for eight different presidenta--beginning

with calvin Coolidge.
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BURG: Yes, yes. Does it ever strike you--I suppose it must--
that such an enormous amount of talent came from this very

emall house? é? 2
r Y

!

i
i s

EISENHOWER: well, I've thought about this a lot and Hnndarsﬁ;y
why. I think I know some of the reasons. We in Abilene were
a rural soclety, very different from the urbanired soclety
with 73 per cent of the people living in grest urban centers,

I feel very sorry for parents and young pecple in the large
citiea becsuse something we learned here at home at an early
age ls difficalt to teach children in an urban location.
Responsibility to us was as much 8 part--natural part--of life
as esatlng and sleeping &nd going to school. I think that this
early acceptance, in a perfectly natural way, of responsibility
gave a8 an appropriate attitude toward education, toward our
duties as cltizens, toward our opportunities, and our cbliga-
tiona In whatever work we undertook. Then may I say the t--here
I'll heve to speaic for myself rather than for my brothers--the
riule was that two things had to be done before I could plav:
one, I had to do my chores; second, I had to have every school

lesson for the next day letter perfect.



br. Milton Eisenhower, 10-15-1571 Page 17

BURG: These were really self-imposed rules, or wes only the

latter self-imposed, Was it your mother who put the first—-

EISENHOWER: Mother wes the one who established the rules, but
soan the regime of work, study, play was just sz natural as
anything else. I never went to bed with an unsolved prohlem

for the next day's lessons.

BURG: I mas,

EISEMROWER: T was expacted to know, I remember one time my
Letin teacher aaid, "Milton Eisenhower, I want you to stay
after class.* pnnd ¥ did. And she said., "You're asino 2

‘pony.'* Do vou know whet a pony is?
BURG: Yes. N, 7

EISENHOWER: I said, "No, I don't have 8 pony.” Bhe said, *"¥our
translatlons are too perfect, and I don't belleve you can de
that.” T said, "Well, for the time being mnother teacher,

Miss Annie Bopkins ie living at our house ané she supervises

my atudies.” wWhile Miss Hopkinas' sabject was not Latin--but

mathematics and other mubiects-——she was a Latin student. She
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would check my translations with me, 8o by the time I went to
achool the next day I was thoroughly prepared. Indeed, often
I would translate passages from Virgil or Cicaro that other

gtudenta fumbled aver.

BURG: Now, Lf I undocatand., the other brothers having gone and
you4 the leat ona hare, thare was some spacey and so you had a

teaachar living in the house.

EISENHOWER: Yes. Keep in mind that Barl and I went through
school together:; there was only a year and nine months difference
in our ages and, as I recall, Earl had been out of school one

year because of a bacd eye. —
BURG: Right. ey

EISENHOWER: He had heen blinded in one eaye due to an sccldent

with a knife. And he and I therefore went all through--
BURG: I see,

EISENHOWER: So, essentially, everything I did, he did too.
only he was a good athlete, and I wasn't--sa that our play-time

and study activitlies were somewhat different.
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BURG: Had your scarlet fever bout set yvou back-——

EISENHOWER: I don't have--

BURGi—-or anykthing in that regard?

EISENBOWER:--any doubt that it did., You know I was anconacious

for two weeks.
BURG: It spunded lLike a dreadful siege you had.

EISENHOWER: I remember that the doors to the two living rooms
were sealed off. Earl snd mother were in there. Esrl had been
axposed, and of course mother served as full-time nurse. The
rest of the family lived in the other part of the house. The

food would be handed guickly through the door.
A

-

BURG: In this, in these two rooms? |

i

v il |

oy 0

o _-_.'-"'
wl s

EISENHOWER: In those two roome in there--that's where three of

ua lived for-——I think 1t was six weaks.

BORG: Six weaks?
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EISENHOWER: Yes. For two weeks as I remember--I think my
mother told me--I was unconscious. I have no doubt that the
scarlet fever lefit a weakneass. To this day my throat where those
great swellings came--]1 guess they eventually burst--is tender.
But the only physical problem 1I've ever had of any serious
nature is bad eyes, I was born with those. 2hs a matter of
fact, this eye condition of nystagmus is congenital. It could
be that scarlet fever made it worse. Incidentally, this is one
of my favorite pictures over here. This is--see here--that's
Earl, and here I am. We're feeding the chickena. That's the
only plcture I know of taken &t that partiocular time. Those

clothes tickle me to death--knickers, you sea--

BURG: Yes. coalh
EISENHOWER:~-long black socks,

BURG: Yes.

EISENBOWER: And, of course, I wore all the hand-me-downs.
Having six older brothera is devastating so far as tha clothes

you have to wear.
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BORG: Yes, yes lndeed. There again, we mey add another reason
for the kind of character that the entire group of you've shown
throughout: that you simply took things in stride--this kind of
thing., I've read books, of course, that discuss the femlly and
dimcuas the fact that youa had to fight in your own waya. You

had to fight for the things that you got--work lor them hard.

EISENEOWER: Certainly we had to work, but you know I'm absolutely
certain that we didn't feel that we were being imposed upon. I
mean life was the way it was; it was natural. Of course most

of the rest of Abilene people had to work too. Edgar is the

only one who ever senzed some difference hotween the norxth and
south sections of Abilene, You know thie is supposed to ba the
wrong slde of tha tracks; Edgsr was conaclous of that. 1In a

book he wrote he made a polint of this. D

BURG: Yes. LA

EISENHOWER: I want to say that Barl and I were atterly uncon-
scious of any such thing. And I often talked to Tke about itr

and he said, "It's 4just, I think, a figment of Ed's imagination."
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Bui you Know we grow so meny vegetables and originally fruit
theat-=the frait orcherd wes eventually destroyed by a storm--

we had things to sell--more than we could consume.
BURG: Right.

BISENHOWER: And Ed used co say, "When I took vegetables up
north of the tracks and up on Buckeye, the people would sniff
at them &8s 1f they wondered where they came irom."” I neEver

experlenced any auch thing.

puyRG: Icdidn't bother you at all though?
EISENHOWER: Mo, I wasn't even conscious of lt--
BURG: Yes. L A
BISENIHOWER: --wasn't sven consclous of il.

BURG: Well, I--

LISEWBOWER: NO, you see, this is—I think this is woxth thinking

Bbouts how do you gliva a child iu 8 eity real responalbility
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that's honest? Chiléren mre terribly guick to sense the
artificial, I mean if you make a chlld move the sandplle

apd then tell him to move it back, he knows it'as phony.
BURG: Yes.

EISENHOWER: Here, since it waa perfectly obvious that the work
had to be done and we took Lt for granted that the lessons for

sehool had to be mastered and all the zest, theae things ware,

ag I say, Jjast a8 natural as sleeping and eeting; and no one

l--‘_.—_‘-\._I: ;

falt-- {-‘_' '
v .

\\:\'\.'_.-__ 3 L .- r

BURG: That horse was out there every day--
EISENHOWER: Oh sure--
BURG: =--and had to be fed.

SISENEOWER; That horse was my dearest friend, ore of my deprest
friands, Sllver was her name. I wag raised on her, And--no
fooling--one of the older brothers--I think it was Ed--had

teased her by blowing in har face through o plpe. she took »
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dislike to him and kickecd him in the face one time. But Silver
wis my iriend. I could crawl Letween her feet, and she wouldn't
move. I could ride her barebsck; I could stand up on her back.

That horse knew me, and she was mina.

BURG: Well, you and Roy then could pretty well share her--

EISENHOWER: Eerl.

BURG: —-=Barl, rather--—

EISENHOWER: Serl.

BURG1 --in the last-—

EISENHCWER: Yes.

BUORGE: =-yoBra,

BISEHMHBOWER: Gh,; yes, HUlE,

BURG: Could you say--perhaps youa were too young Lo notice-=but
{n any way did lLife change for you #nd your brother as the older

anea left? Was life in this house different? Did the pace alter,
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or ds you recollect it s being pretiy much the zame? The sane

gutiss to be done and--

EISENHOWER: With the destruction of the crchard by 8 wind storm
we expanded the alfalfa field, and that altered one of the chores
outdoars. Also as electricity, central heating, and refirigeration
came into the house one <idn't have to get up at 4130 in the
morning to build fires in the stoves. Chores in the house
diminighed., Buat I dor't think that life changed much. Arthur

left when I was quite small--

BURE: Yes. {._ ‘
N 55

EISENHOWER: --then Bdgar went to the University of Michigsn.

I suppose he was about eightesn when he left. I remember most
vividly whan Tke left for Weat Point. You =zee, mother and dad
were strict pmclfists, but they also had s firm conviction that
parents should not determine the destiny of their children.

The only thing that dad ever sald was that he hoped Edgar would
be a doctor., And the nearest he ever camé to trying te influence

s son—he said to Edger that Lf he wanted to go to the University
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of Kansas and be a doctor he, dad, thought he could afford to
help him--partly--if he'd also work. But he never complained
when Edgar went to the University of Michigan to study law.
well, anyway, when Ike decided to go to West Point--which was
completely contrary to dad and mother's philoscphy--they never
said a word, pDad was at work when Ike left. I went out on
the west porch with mother as Ike started uptown, carrcying

his suitcase, to teke the train. Mother stood there like 2
stone statue, and I stood right by her until Ike was out of
sight. Then she came in and went te her room and bawled like a

baby. I was the only person home. ©Oh, of course, I cried too.

——

BURG: You were about twelve, I think, then.( \

¥

H\_\’Nll. ‘I::.:Ir-
Ll Py
EISENHDWER: Gee, I'd have to figure. He went in 1911, wasn't

Le?
BURG: Yesa, I think it was.

EISENHOWER: Yes, I'd be twelve years old., But that scene--1've
never had it out of my mind. I'll never forget it. But coming

back to your guestion--no, with fewer sons in the house, there
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was less work to be done. And with the coming of modern con-
veniences--electric lights, refrigeration, furnace, and all
these things--there wasn't so much work to be done. JAnd mother

had some outside help in the house from time to time.
BURG s 'ﬂhi did she”
EISENFOWER: ©Oh, yes.

BURG: I wondered if it bothered her that one of the shaping
forces in your life--in a way--was being withdrawn as the con-
vaniences came in, as life was better--less harsh, let's say,

in the sense that more things were being done easily.
EISENHOWER: Well, you know-- ||I' }.
BURG: Wondered Lf it bothered her.

EISENHOWERt=--No, by no means. Ahs a matter of fact, mother
liked the nice things as well as anyone I ever knew. BSo-=
no-—ghe liked the conveniences and liked to dress well and

liked ijewelry and all the rest. Her religion didn't keep her
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from pleasures——her philosophy was not that of the Amish. The
Ruish philosophy ism that only the next world matters. »And if
one, therefore, goes in for worldly things in this world, it
is because you don't have your mind and your heart set on the
proper objective. That's true of the Moravians; lt's true of
many of the Dunkard sects from which the River Brethren came.
and of course, at one time mother and dad were both in the so-
called River Brethren or Brethren-in-Christ Church. All of us
boys ware raised in the River Brethren Sunday school. Coming
back to your guestion, I would not say that mother was an
unworldly person. bhe liked the same things that everybody
elge liked. Incidentally, do you know the story of the piano

here In the living room?

BURG: 1I& this the one they speak of as the "ebony pianc"--

BISENEOWER: Yes, that is the ebony piénc. £

BURG: --that was so important?

EISENEOWER: That'om the one I learned to play on as did Arthur

and Ika,
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BURG: The Rugh's kept this for har——

EISENBOWER: That's the one she bought before she was married
with an inheritance left her by her family--8 small inheritance.
And the Rugh's kept it when Mother, Dad, Arthur, and Ed moved

to TadMAS—-—

BURG: Yes.

EISENBOWER: --and then got it back when they came to Abilene.

BURG: Now, in an evening, for example, once dinner s over and

you boys have taken care of the chores necessary and you've--

EISENHOWER: Got our lessons.,

BURG: --and you got your lessons, where might we expect to find

your father for example? —

EISENHOWER: Well, now--

BURG: Where would he be, and what would he be doing?
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EISENHOWER: Dad loved to read, and he loved to hava people come
gee him. He wes not the kind of social person who would go to
other people unless he was invited: that was & curious thing
pbout him. But he loved to heve people come see him, and he
iiked to read. But at this stage I was lesrning to play the
piano. Macter of fact, I was good enough on the piesno thakt I

would play & solo at the high school once in 2z while.

BORG: I Bse8.

EISENHOWER: And so normally after dinner mother and father

would sic out here--

BIfRE@: In the kitchen area.

EISENBOWER: —--in what was then the kitchen. And I would go in
and start playing the plano--practicing. I remember that it
used to hurt my feelings a bit if--I understand,now--if dad

would come up and close the door so they-—-

BORG: I .sea, I see.
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EISENBOWER: --could hear what they were saying to one another.

BURG: How let me ask your was the music floating cut of this

room classical musie or was there a little bit of jax: and
———
rad .

ragtime coming out of here’ |“_.’

\a
EISERHOWER: I only played--I don't think I ever played Eagl:i.m‘-!-. ..
at heme-—-not because mother and ded would hawve objected, but
because I love classical music. I now play an organ and play
only classical music. But in maklng encugh money ko go through
college—I want you Lo krow I had $40.00 help to get throagh
college--1 organi:zed a dance hand, and sc I had bto turn Lo
ragtime. One thing I had was & good thump, thump rhythm. Boy.

I had the best rhythm in the world. So, you know, I couldn't
pley very difflcult music., we led--1 remember--we fad @ trumpet;
we had a trombone; we had drumsy we had a saxophone; and 2
singer with & wery loud voice. He didn't need & wmicrophong Lo
be heard, and I played the piano. I had one solo that every
time we hed a dsnce I played, and that was "Kitten on the Keys.®
Keep in mind that I hed a fall-time job Lln the daytime. We
played at night from Zalina to Solomon to Chapman in the

summertime. And I remember we got §5.00 a piece for a night's

work,
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BURG: Good Lord.

EISENBOWER: Which, supplementing one's salary--look I started
collega with $40.00 in my pocket and ended with $1700.00 in the
bank; so when I became a vice-consul and went to Scotland, I

waan't without some resources.
BURG: Marvelous.

EISENHOWER: And as a vice-consul I got $150.00 a month to
start, and I save §50.00 of it., I lived beautifully in Scotland

on 5100.00 28 month. You see—— o

BURG: You were a single man at that time, weren't you? o .

EISENHOWER: I was single. I didn't get married till I came

to wWash ington.
BURG: Right.

EISENHOWER: I must tell my favorite story of inflation. As

a youngster here in Abilene we were all very aware of the most
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marvelous hamburger stand you ever saw in your life. I gon't
suppose it was any blgger than from here to over thexe, bat the
owner specialized in hamburgers. You could get a hamburger
that thick and that big around on a roasted bun with all the
pickles, mustard or anything else you wanted to put on LE==-

all for a nickel. Lasst year I was at the St. Reglis in New York:
when I came downstairs to have lunch; there was a convention,

so the dining room was full. The only place I could go was
ints a lounge off the bar., I cordered a hamburger and a bottle

of Micheleb. The hamburger was §4.85. Sier

BURG: Oh, dear Lord, really.

EISENHOWER: That's right. wWell, let me tell you another story
of inflation. My father bought this property early in 1899 for
£3,500,00. There was this house, 2 city block of good land

with a full-grown orchard, vegetables, an enormous ba rn—-=my

uncle from whom he bought Lt was a veterinarian—-a completely
equipped barn. Three thousand five hundred dollars. well, when

I became president of Johns Hopkins, I built a beautiful ocfficial
house on the campus. A friend of mlne--wanting to do me 8 favor-——
gave me a metal cookout shaped very much like an old-fashioned

stove-=you Know--



pr. Milton Eissshower, 10-15-1071 Page 34

PURG: Right.

BISENFIOWER; -—to meke it work vou hed ko build a small housze

aroundg 1t,

BURG: Oh. really.

FISENEOWER: Oh, yes, it had to be enclosed. So I built 2 very

small house of stone and glass—-it cost me §5,000,00.

BURG: Oh, my goodness,

ETSENHDWER: For one cookouk,

BURG: Well, as your--

EISENHOWER: rnd this whole city block coat dad §3,500.00.

BURG: Yea., Three acres of land I believa.

EISENEOWER: About two and a half,

BURG: WwWell, as your brother said, "The Pentagon office with

greater floor space than the home in which he'd grown up.”
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EISENHOWER: Yaa.
BURGy MNow this--ihis, then, beceme later on the bsthroom.

EISENHOWER: This originally was & bedroom—-—s small bedrogm;
that's where my grandfather Elsenhower lived in his later years.

And Lt was not made into a bathroom until after he pasaed away.

G But others did the plumbing of this, Thie is not--

EISENHOWER: I <did not do that. Vi ¢

BURG:; -—one of your projeckts. Lo

BISENHOWER: I don't remember who did--who put that in. Dad
could handle that kind of work, and maybe Ed and others could

help him. But I didn't do that.
BURGs Now you boys-—-homework done in your sepsrate rooms or did--

EISENEOWER: No, I normally studied at the dining table right
here in this room. And, coming back again to moving that kitchen,

it abvionsly was--because I can remember studying Ln this as a
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dining room when I was still in high school--s0 Lt obvicusly

had to be--=
BURG: Right.
EISENEOWER: --when I waa around fifteen or thereaboukts.

BURG: No such thing, then, as sort of a study table for those
of yvou who were atill here. You'd heen pretty young I suppose

when Dwight and the others would be working.

PISENHOWER: Yes, and I don't remember whether they worked

a3 much after dinner on their stedies as I did. o
Ilr'..-' .-\.-.

LR

BURG: Yeah. -

EISENHOWER: I just don't know.
BURG: Let's move up here to this--to the parlor. RoWw up here

in an area of the house that other--you and your music inthere.

This pact of the house is not used ¢quite g@o much, I understand.
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EISENHOWER: Right hare?
BURG: Yezh, right in here.

EISENHOWER: Wwell, this was used a great deal not only because
the folks loeved to have company but alseo they often had church

meetings here.

BURG: ©Oh, I didn't know that.
BEISENBOWER: Ch, ves.

BURG: I didn't know that.

EISENHDWER: And then dad had guite & thing. Let's see, how old
was I now? Say, I was twaelve, and Barl was nearly fourteen.
pad made us read the Bible from the Book of Genesla to the Book

of Revelations. We read it together and-- f_-f.-'“».__

[ .
L1

BURG: Outloud, sirc? N

EISENBOWER:; Yes. I'm not sure that it was a good educational
exercise. Buat the trick was this: he would start reading:

any time that he made & mistake and we ceught him, that gave me
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the privilege of reading. And then Lf Esrl or dad caught me in
an error, that gave them the chance to read-—and this is the way
we went through the whole Blble. Well, I'm sure that that was
very good ln teaching how to read Bccarately, but I'm not sure

it wag--
BURG: Theologically, whether it did much.

EISENHOWER: Theologically, I don't think it ampunted to much.

Ko, no, actually these rooms were very busy places.

BURG: I see, L
l"‘:".".-_u_-_.u_ ’

EISENBOWER: Oh, ves. In addition to religlious and social meetings
and Bible-reading lessons, other things went on in here. Let me
mention one, This is not due to my memory; this is what Ike told
me: When I was a baby, Ike would have to take his turn taking

care of me usually in this room. And mother—
BURG: I hadn't known that.
EISENHOWER: Oh, yes.

BURG: That's part of the household duty then—

EISH! HOWER: Yes, as far--
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BUBRG: --vou or whoewer is young.

EISENEDVWER: If tha baby--and I was the youngest--ware in a baby
carriage--you know, the wheels are about so far apart--Ike would
lay on his back reading a book--probably history because he was
an avid history reader: and he would kick the one sxle--: and
then when it hit the front of his foot, he would pall Lt toward
him end keep it goingy back and forth umtil the baby was asleep.
Then he'd just lay there and read. And pretty soon if the baby

started to ¢ry, he'd do the--

BURG: BHe'd get her again. I would--

EISENHOWER: Oh, no--

b =
T

BuRG: --imaglne that was pretty populsr duty with him.
EISENHOWER: —-Another thing: Mother used to play the pilano and

sing; she had a beautiful volce, you know. She liked to sing

mostly religious songs.

BURG: In & pre-radio era, reading woulé probably be one of the

thinas-—the lelsure things—althouagh I'm not sure now just how
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much lelsure would bhe left to you once chores and the school
work heé been done. Did your mother and father put you ln

bed pretty early or--

EISEMHOWER: I guess so. Yes, I think so. But you kmow, zleng
with everybody else, I was reading Horatio Alger and the Motor

Boys and--
BURG 2 ﬁh; Yes., 5 . ._::‘-'.'

BISENROWER: ©Oh, I'll never forget a disillusioning thing. I
wasz reading Motor Boys--I don't know how old I was—--and Ike was
still at home. I was rending that two cars were goino side by
gide--the ovil man 2nd the good man. And they were approaching
a bridge. Remember, they were going full speed ahead. The
bridge was only wide enough for one. And finally, at the last
moment, the good man speeded shead and cot across the bridge
firgt. Well, TYke happenad to look over my shoulder. He enorted
and aaid, "Tan't that silly. Since both were going as fast as

they could., how did the good man increase his speed?" BHoy, was
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I disillusioned. I doubt that I ever read a Motor Boys book

again.
BURG: That logical mind ruining——

BISENHOWER: Oh, yes.

BURG: =—=your story.
EISENMOWER: Oh, yeas, that ruined the Motor Boys for me.

BOURG: Much later, a3 a kid, I had & couple of the Motor Boy
books that I used to read. They were in France, I believe,

in the books that I read.

= 1
EISENHOWER: I loved Horatio Alger. )

e,
w i
L

BURG: Yes yes. This, then, was the parents' room.

BISENHOWER: Yes, Say, tell me, do they still sccept donations

in here? They usaed to.

BURG: I don't belieave so.
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EISENEOWER: I never cared for that.

BURG: No, the entlre house Ls open and without admission fee,

and T'm——

EISENHOWER: Yes.

BURG: —--gure that no donastione are taken.

EISENHOWER: Good.

BORGY No, they like to have them simply come throughr: and most
people--as you would expéct--are very much moved by this house

and its conktents.

EISENHBOWER: Well, by modern-day stendards this must be thought
of as & very modest house. I now live in an elighteen-room house--
four storles, with the hasement; my bedroom is 312 feebt long. But,
do you know, I never felt cramped in this house. Ike, in making

a speech here one time, said a very true thing. He says, "In
retrospect I realirze we might have been classed as being poor,

but we didn't know lt." Ha, it never occurred Lo me.
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BURG: Well, it never cccurred to me in the Depression that
there was anything zeally wrong when I was growing up. It
sgemed all right to me, and I Jdidn't feel deprived of anything.
it'a amazing how many people come in, and--1 think it's slmost

universal--they look at this houss-—

EISENHOWER: We'd hetter go upstairs now. I'm going to have

to go meet Mamig--
BURG: Right. [

EISENBOWER: —-pretty gulckly. We'rae glving 3 party ocurselves

tonight. She's gver at the Museum.

BURG: Everyone sees things in this house that existed in thelr

grandparents' homes.

EISENHOWER: Most of these pictures on the wall here in the upper
hall: That was my high school graduation picture. I know that
one was Barl's. I thing that was Ed's [Bdgar's], and T belleve
that was Ike's. Here are PFoy and Arthw . This framed document

nsed to hang in the livirg room.
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BURG: Yes, I've just Lean reading about that.

EISENHDWER: He [David J. Bisenhower) had two diplomas: one in
mechanical or stationacy engineering: and one in mathematics,

I don't know where the aother om is,

BiIRG: TUnless Llt's been put into one of the rooms—--might well be,

EISENHOWER: Could be. In this room there were two double beds--

had tos be--so four slept in here. Edgar, originelly, slept in

there.
" L
£ 3
BURG: In khe small room. NS
Sy

EISENBOWER: Yes. And again my mind goes to when I remember
five at home. I think 1 remember when Arthur left home, but

I waa small, vou know.

BURS: Yes.

EISENHOWER: Fourteen years difference, I may have besn four

years old when he left home.
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BURG: Yes, Lt's not unlikely that you would remember Lt, though--

EISENEOWER: Ho.

BURG: -—at that age

EISENROWER: Well, anyway, as time went on—of course, &s there
were fewer here--this room was changed, and one of the beds

was taken out. AL one time thst smesll one was my room, but not

originally.
fﬁfﬁ?E
BURG: Were you ever in this room? \:-\ _L;
s

EISENAOWER: No, this at some point, probably when Arthur left

homa, became the gueat room—-—

BEURG: I sea. Is this where the teacher lived when-—-

EISENHOWER: I think =o.

BURG: --sha was staying here?

EISENHODWER: Yes, I think so. I think this is where Miss Hopkins
stayed., And it was the guest room when Ike came home fram West

Polnt., He stayed Lln here. You know, he became a guest then.
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BURG: Yes, yea, 5o your room for & time was the mmall room.

EISENROWER: Yeos.

BURG: Ang you were here?

EISEMBOWER: Originally, Earl and I slept in 2 bed here, and
two othier boys slept over there., There were foor of us in

tliig room.

AL C\.—:‘-\
g
o
Moy <

BURG: Yes.

BISENHOWEBR: wWell, today you'd thirk youz were set upon and
abused to live in such a feshlon. Wow I have to have not
only a big bedroom bot & separate bath for svery person in

the houme.

BURG: Yes, indeed, indeed. wWell, I went back to the grad school
ln 1965, and we all crammed into & fairly small house. My kids
hed ¢ taste of life in eramped quarters and found it was guite

bearanle.

BISENHOWER: You know, lt's & funny thing, IT the aniversity

did that in its official dormitories, che students would ecream

their heads off.
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FRG: Yes, of course.

EISEMAOWER:; Bat I gotinte the fraternity houses and to some of
the apartments that students rent, and you wouldn't believe how

they--

pAG: Uh=-huh-=crammed in.

."3"5-‘.-_3;:‘;
EISENHOWER: 7You know, this was a very satisfactory little roaom

for ene peraon to atay in. My worst memory of this room——thie
guy, BEE, was & devil. He wonld pick me ap--I would say I was
theaw four years old--and push my head throungh that trap door
above us. It wouald he piteh black in the attic. And he would
gav, “The slerhant's aoine to get you." T would scream my head
off, and mother would come running to see what the problem was.
In the old barn--the middie of the barn was two stories high with
2 big hay mow--and then there was what we called the "operating

room,” where my uncle did his veterinasry work-—

BURG: Yeah.

BYSEMPOWER: --well, that was onlv one story. So you could go
£rom the flonr of the hay mow throuwgh & small sguare opening
about this high into the attic of the single story part--if you

follow me?
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BUEG: Right,

BISEMHOWER: with a sloping zooly

BURG: Right.

BEISENHOWER: Believe me, Lt was pltch bhlack in there. One time
Ed put mo--threw me-—in there and then pat bales of hay in front
of the gpening so I couldn't get out. Well, then, he said,

“Bow let the lion get you, boy." Can you imagine.

BURGS: That grand mon.

EISENHOWER: Do you know for years until I was almost through

high school I wes scared to Jdeath of the darx.

BURGY Yes, of courae; of course you would be.

EISENHOWER: If I were up town at a play--participating in school
affairgs-—and had to come home slone, =3 I got out of the lighted

distriet I would run all the way home.

BUORG: Now, ae I understand it, your mother was more or less a
believer that you, between you, took care of these mattera.

It would not be likely you would call apon hex.
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CISENHOWER: ©Oh, no,no, I did not. I would not run to mother
and complain about Bdgar on such & thing. 25 a2 metter of fact
I would mose Llkely tell Tke, and they might settle it between

themselvas.

BOES: Good Lozd,

EISENHOWER: Na, once again you Know this was learnlng the lesson

of responsibility, of independence.

BURG: Yea, vyas,.

L
b L

-
. £ &
eh__. | .___.l

EISERNHOWER: Fow, by the way, going back to the beginning of our

L

discussion about how slx sons did fairly well in life, I wouldn't
for the warld think of detracting from the positive influences
of mother and father. They were good people. They were not only
intelligent and compassionate--with bilg hearte-—-but they were
good in the beat senase of that term. I never heard a cross word
spoken between my parents, and I wes home longer than anybody
elgss. I was home till I was elghteen. And then even when I

waent to college, I came home gulte often. As 2 matter of fact,
I atayed out of achool twice. It took me six years to get a

bachelor's degrea bhecause of those two different years.
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BUORE: I sea,
BISENHODWER: So-—

BURGE: It occcurs to me to say sométhing. Forgive me for saying
it, but in & rather long, full lifetime you've observed many
men and women. And your mother and father still atend high, &

they not-—=

EISENHOWER: Yes, oh, indeed, indead, W, -
gy

BURG: —--2ven by comparison with the many that you have worked

with?

EISENHOWER: In character, in philosephy. in intelligence, and
in their perscnal relationships. You know, the children to lock
out for are the children who are being raised EIn homes where the
atmosphere is not that way--where there is guarreling. too much
drinking and, in drunkeness, doing ridiculous things which affect
the children. No, if you look at your whole life from the time
you are & youngster until the time you pass on, I suppose the
first twelve years of your life are the most important. I think
by then--and I say this now as an eduacator and having worked with

many thousands of young people—
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BURG: Yes.

EISENBOWER: --I think your attitude toward Llfe, your attltude
toward yourself, your attitude toward your responsibllity: what
you deem to be right, what you deem to be wrong--I think these
things are pretty well set. Now that doesn't mean that by hard
study of many things, such as philosophy, that you can't refine

or that you can't even chenge. I certsinly wouldn't say that.

BURG: Yes. {\ z]

EISENHOWER: In fact I've been supporting for years a school out
in California that has a marvelous record of rehabilitating boys,
they sre boys who at about the age of 12 have heen in trouble
with the law. The record sinca 1902 up to now iz that eighty
percent never again have had trouble, But I still say that
deep-seated aspects of your whole makeup--your character, your
attitude towards others, vyour attitude toward yourself mmd your
responsibilities--are pretty much fixed in chlldhood, ug to

twelve or fourteen years of age.



br. Milton Eisenhower, 10-15-1971 Page 52

pURE: wWhen you came back to this house, Dr. Elsenhower, did
you find that these two people were stlll btwo people that you

enjoyed knowing and being with as adulta?

EISENEOWER: I think I enloyed mother and father more as human
heings when I was older than when I was young. I've often
thought about this. I think that I--and I suspect my hrothers
too--rather took them for granted whan wa were young. The
relationship was & close one: there were never any quarrels.

We got punished {f we &id things wrong, and the worst punishmernt
we'd get [was that] mother would say, "I'll tell your father
about this wihen he geta howe." Becsuse now you had btwo pubish-

ments. Now you had to worry from the time she said this to you--

BURG: Right. 2
W

£l
™~
LT

EISENHOWER: ——and you knew the punlshment was golng to be more

difficult whén--
BURG: And she carrled throuch when she told you that?

EISENHOWER: Always. We knew we were going to catch it. Ho. As I
got older and ceme home--I was home & good deal when I was presi-

dent of Kansas State University--it was easy to drive up here.
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BURG: Right.

EISENHOWER: Of course, by that time, dad had passed on in forty=
two, and I came to Kansas State in forty-three., I enjoyed mother
then intellectuslly and as a person. &he was no longer a mother,

Yo Know, We werg-—

BURG: Yes.

EBISEMHOWER: --we wéare on the same plane then, and she was lots

of fun--pgh, she was fun.

—

il
Fiy 2
BURG: That's good to know, very good to hear. | 4
'\.':;l_._\.'. '.J‘}‘

EISENHOWER: Well, I think I had better run because Mamie-=thay

sald that I could spot the car.

BURG: Why don't we walk out and I'll-—

EISENHOWER: Yes, and keep on talking if you want to.
HERE CHRISTIAN: Thank you, slr, Mr. Eisenhower.
EISENHOWER: Good to see you.

HERB CHRISTIAK: Dr. Eisenhower, thank you. Thank you.
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BURG: We'll see you, Herb. Thank you so much.

HERP CHRISTIAN: Is that the car across the streat?

EISENHOWER: It's a large black Fleetwood Cadillac.

BURG: If we walk to the--

EISENEOWER: Is that the car over there?

HERE CERISTIAN: I thipnk that's the car,

BURG: You think so?

EISENHOWER: Yes, I believe it is.
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